Centiro Group AB Communication on Progress 2022

Date: 2022-04-13

Version 1

Classification: Public

This document may contain **CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION** which must not be shared, distributed, copied, altered, duplicated or in other ways processed without prior permission from Centiro. It may also contain, reflect or have its source in copyright, trademarks, know-how, trade secrets and other **PROPRIETARY RIGHTS** belonging to Centiro and its affiliates.



Revisions

| VERSION | CHANGE DESCRIPTION | RESPONSIBLE | DATE |
|---------|--------------------|---------------|------------|
| 1 | Document created | Gustaf | 2022-04-13 |
| | | Stawåsen, Åsa | |
| | | Beronius, | |
| | | Paulina | |
| | | Lundström | |

Table of Contents

| 1. | Statement of Continued Support by The Chief Executive Officer | | | | |
|----|--|---|---|-------|--|
| 2. | Introduction | | | | |
| | 2.1 | 1 The Pandemic Year 2021 | | | |
| | 2.2 | .2 Brief Introduction to Centiro | | 4 | |
| | | 2.2.1 Materiality and Stakeholders | | | |
| | | 2.2.2 | Centiro's Management System | 5 | |
| | | 2.2.3 | Certified and Awarded | 5 | |
| | 2.3 | UN Susta | ainable Development Goals | 5 | |
| | | 2.3.1 Goal 3: Ensure Healthy Lives and Promote Well-Being for All at All Ages | | | |
| | | 2.3.2 Indi | Goal 9: Build Resilient Infrastructure, Promote Sustainable ustrialization and Foster Innovation | 6 | |
| | 2.3.3Goal 11: Make Cities Inclusive, Safe, Resilient, an | | al 11: Make Cities Inclusive, Safe, Resilient, and Sustainable | 7 | |
| | 2.3.4Goal 12: Ensure Sustainable Consumption and Production Patterns | | al 12: Ensure Sustainable Consumption and Production Patterns | 7 | |
| | | 2.3.5 | Goal 13: Take Urgent Action to Combat Climate Change and Its Impa | acts7 | |
| | | 2.3.6 | Goal 17: Revitalize the Global Partnership for Sustainable Developme | ent.7 | |
| 3. | Hun | Human Rights Principles | | | |
| | 3.1 | Assessm | nent, Policy, and Goals | 8 | |
| | 3.2 | Impleme | ntation | 8 | |
| | 3.3 | Measurement of Outcomes | | 9 | |
| 4. | Lab | _abor Principles10 | | | |
| | 4.1 | Assessment, Policy, and Goals10 | | | |
| | 4.2 | Implementation10 | | | |
| | 4.3 | Measurement of Outcomes11 | | | |
| 5. | Env | Environmental Principles | | | |
| | 5.1 | Assessment, Policy, and Goals12 | | 12 | |
| | 5.2 | Implementation | | | |
| | 5.3 | Measure | ment of Outcomes | 13 | |
| 6. | Anti-Corruption Principles | | | 14 | |
| | 6.1 | Assessment, Policy, and Goals14 | | | |
| | 6.2 | Implementation | | | |
| | 6.3 | Measurement of Outcomes | | 15 | |

1. Statement of Continued Support by The Chief Executive Officer

2022-04-13

To our stakeholders,

I am pleased to confirm that Centiro Group AB reaffirms its support of the Ten Principles of the United Nations Global Compact in the areas of human rights, labor, environment, and anti-corruption.

In this annual Communication on Progress, we describe our actions to continually improve the integration of the Global Compact and its principles into our business strategy, culture, and daily operations. We also commit to sharing this information with our stakeholders using our primary channels of communication.

Sincerely yours,

Niklas Hedin, CEO

2. Introduction

We believe businesses are a key driving force in striving towards a sustainable world. Businesses are as recognized and rewarded for their sustainability commitment as for their products, solutions, and financial achievements. We strive to make ourselves and our customers part of the solution for a better world. Our delivery management services play key roles in helping our customers and partners make smarter choices in their supply and demand chain.

We have offices, customers, and partners in most parts of the world, and we take responsibility to work for that our business and services do not adversely affect our planet, no matter where in the world it is and whether it is related to environmental, social, or personal issues. We want to bring about change and inspire and help others to do so.

Creating an annual Communication on Progress (CoP) is central to our company's commitment to the UN Global Compact and provides valuable information to our stakeholders.

This CoP includes

- a statement by Centiro's CEO expressing his continued support for the UN Global Compact and a renewing of our commitment to the initiative;
- a description of the actions the Centiro has taken or plans to take to implement the Ten Principles in the areas of human rights, labor, environment, and anti-corruption; and
- measurement of outcomes.

2.1 The Pandemic Year 2021

2021 has been a year out of the ordinary for everyone. From the start of the pandemic 2020, we have been in an active business continuity mode, closely following data, expert opinions, restrictions, and recommendations from official sources. Different restrictions have affected our lives differently depending on where in the world we are. In India and the US, our colleagues have to a large extent, been confined to their homes and we have tried to facilitate their work from home as much as possible. In Sweden, the office has been open and both work from home and from the office have been possible. Measures have been taken continuously, to ensure a safe and healthy work situation for all employees globally. Below are some examples of what we have done:

- We have ensured full health insurance support and free antibody testing for all employees in all our locations.
- We have promoted ways to take care and tips, guidance, and tools to facilitate wellbeing during this time of uncertainty.
- We have ensured continuous internal communication regarding the pandemic, our health, company results, and customer and project news.
- We have expanded our employee development portfolio to include more virtual learning modules and trainings.
- We have performed technical adjustments to further facilitate remote work, such as, improved solution for remote connection width and speed and provision of work tools such as screen, mouse, keyboard, and headphones to all employees.
- We have twice performed surveys (GPTW internal care survey) and gathered data on how our colleagues perceived the pandemic situation. These surveys gave us valuable insights on what to improve in order to keep a great work environment.

2.2 Brief Introduction to Centiro

Centiro is a market leading innovator in cloud-based delivery management solutions and logistics collaboration. Centiro's products and solutions empower world leading brands and their supply chains in 175+ countries. Centiro combines a carrier network and data-driven innovation capability, using advanced analytics and artificial intelligence, to optimize service, performance, and cost.

Centiro offers unique solutions for delivery management that let companies think global yet offers consumers a consistent and personalized experience for first- and last-mile delivery and returns. The end-to-end solution ranges from complex delivery options at the customer frontend to straightforward shipping labelling solutions and carrier management, always with full visibility and control over events, cost, and customer promise.

2.2.1 Materiality and Stakeholders

Our strategic focus is formed in dialogue with relevant stakeholders, including our employees, customers, and partners. We also consider the planet itself a stakeholder. The material areas are based on

- where our impact is;
- how big it is socially, environmentally, and economically;
- where the risk for negative impacts is; and
- how it can be mitigated.

Our material areas of impact are with our services within supply and demand chain and transportation of goods, as well as in the role of employer in Europe, Asia, and North America.

We continuously engage with our stakeholders to find out what is important to them. We often cocreate the solutions with our customers and partners, and their requirements and expectations are naturally provided during that process together with opportunities for us to guide them to even better solutions and optimized flows and procedures.

We give the employees great possibilities to be heard and influence their work. The input from the employees is captured everywhere, in channels ranging from everyday work discussions to anonymous surveys and participations in creation of our strategy.

2.2.2 Centiro's Management System

Centiro has integrated sustainability into the company group management system. The system encompasses all activities at Centiro and is based on operational standards and our environmental and sustainability policies, "Centiro Code of Ethics", the UN Global Compact, the UN Sustainability Development Goals (SDGs), ISO 45001, ISO 50001, and ISO 14001.

The management system provides guidelines for the ongoing cycle of planning, implementation, and evaluation, as well as the improvement of processes. Centiro also has routines and mechanisms in place to ensure compliance with applicable international and national legislation.

2.2.3 Certified and Awarded

We have three ISO certifications for all legal entities within Centiro Group AB within environment, work environment, and energy, certified by the certification body PECB:

- ISO 14001 Environment
- ISO 45001 Occupational Health and Safety
- ISO 50001 Energy

Great Place to Work[®], (GPTW) awards Centiro for our dedicated and long-term approach to our workplace culture efforts. Our conscious endeavors, relating to culture, purpose-driven leadership and focus on people, have resulted in high rankings on the Great Place to Work lists since 2010. In 2021 we were awarded number one in Sweden, number seven in Europe and number 39 in India. In addition, we are GPTW-Certified in the US (and will be ranked when we have enough employees to qualify). We have also received the prestigious title Great Place to Work Legend[™] in Sweden for our dedication and long-term approach in the area.

Centiro has a gold level EcoVadis sustainability rating. The EcoVadis assessment is evidence-based and covers business ethics, work environment, environment and energy footprint, procurement, and important social factors. Centiro ranks among the top three percent of companies assessed by EcoVadis.

2.3 UN Sustainable Development Goals

At Centiro, we have during 2021 started to explore how the Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) could be a tool for us to structure our strategic sustainability agenda. In our work

towards a sustainable future, we find touchpoints in many of the SDGs but six of them are more aligned with the sustainability agenda, as described in the following sections.





2.3.1 Goal 3: Ensure Healthy Lives and Promote Well-Being for All at All Ages

Centiro ensures all employees has the possibility to healthy lives and promotes well-being and work–life balance (which we call life–life balance since work unarguable is part of life). We make sure all employees have good health and medical insurances. These insurances also cover employees' family members in the regional parts of our operations where this is needed. We continuously assess employee health- and well-being risks to be able to work with them proactively, for example via our yearly Great Place to Work surveys. We continuously promote and sponsor physical and mental health programs which include team sports, yoga, massage, weight loss activities, etc. Additionally, we provide an annual wellness grant to all our colleagues. The health emergency of the corona pandemic has during 2021 tested and proved our crisis management and preparedness.

The Centiro services are used by our customers and partners to ensure the quality and precision of critical deliveries, such as of pharmaceuticals and medical equipment, to enable timely, accurate, and safe universal health-care coverage and access to medicines and vaccines worldwide.

Centiro is certified on ISO 13485, which applies to quality management systems for medical devices.

2.3.2 Goal 9: Build Resilient Infrastructure, Promote Sustainable Industrialization and Foster Innovation

SDG 9 is about building resilient infrastructure, promoting inclusive and sustainable industrialization, and fostering innovation. Centiro's services enables robust, intelligent, and efficient transportation, reducing unnecessary and faulty transports, enabling easy found pain points and leakage by full visibility.

Centiro has a culture of innovation, currently designing, developing, and implementing new solutions utilizing data analytics, artificial intelligence, and machine learning that introduces and promotes new ways to build resilient infrastructure and sustainable industrialization with

efficient use of resources, enabling affordable and equitable access for all and promoting inclusive and sustainable industrialization.

2.3.3 Goal 11: Make Cities Inclusive, Safe, Resilient, and Sustainable SDG 11 is about making cities and human settlements inclusive, safe, resilient, and sustainable. Centiro's services enables robust, intelligent, and efficient transportation, empowering both the little carrier company and the large, enabling goods to be transported safely and accurately to all corners of the world. Following or stakeholder enquiries and requests, we have during 2021 further explored the possibilities of developing our services together with customers and partners to create a network of last-mile, urban delivery vendors where sustainability aspects can be a selection criterion.

We have during 2021 engaged with the technical committee work and standard development for environmental management with focus on the standard ISO 14083 related to greenhouse gases.

2.3.4 Goal 12: Ensure Sustainable Consumption and Production Patterns

In relation to SDG 12, we have the responsibility to affect worldwide consumption and production use of the natural environment and resources in a sustainable way. Centiro works continuously with product development and efficiency improvements in order to reduce its negative climate and environmental impacts. For example, we enable the supply chain accurate and optimized transportation of goods safeguarding its timely delivery and hence quality, thus reducing waste.

During 2021, we have further developed our procurement practices and supplier due diligence routines in the ethics and climate impact areas to be even more sustainable.

2.3.5 Goal 13: Take Urgent Action to Combat Climate Change and Its Impacts

Climate change is affecting everyone everywhere. To help customers and partners work towards their climate goals, we are developing new technology frameworks to enable them to measure and report on their carbon footprint, providing mechanisms for raising capacity for effective climate change-related planning and management. We aim to offer the possibility to create quality CO2 reports, developed from the latest models and research, in our services before 2023.

Centiro works proactively to combat climate change by focusing on sustainability in the company group strategic goals the coming three years. We have also introduced the planet as stakeholder to be considered in all business projects moving forward.

2.3.6 Goal 17: Revitalize the Global Partnership for Sustainable Development

The SDGs can only be realized with strong global partnerships and cooperation. We recognize a successful development agenda requires inclusive partnerships at the global, regional, national, and local levels, built upon principles and values, and upon a shared vision and shared goals placing people and the planet at the center.

Strong international cooperation is needed now more than ever to ensure the means to recover from the pandemic, build back better and achieve sustainable development. We

want to support this by setting aside one percent of the company group profit for corporate social responsibility (CSR) initiatives, locally and globally. Please visit the <u>Centiro website</u> for information on current CSR initiatives.

Over the years, Centiro has several times invested in partnerships where the planet is the first stakeholder. And as we conclude one successful partnership, creating a safer world for people in exceptionally affected, violence-struck areas, we engage in another partnership for sustainable development.

3. Human Rights Principles

- **Principle 1:** Businesses should support and respect the protection of internationally proclaimed human rights; and
- Principle 2: make sure that they are not complicit in human rights abuses.

3.1 Assessment, Policy, and Goals

Centiro is committed to influence our employees and business partners to respect the Universal Declaration of Human Rights. In our code of ethics, we make our position in the matter clear to employees, customers, suppliers, and partners and address the specific human rights issues and risks relevant to the company group.

Centiro policies, such as the code of ethics, the code of AI ethics, the procurement policy, the equality and diversity policy, the work environment policy, and the speaking-up policy, set the direction to, wherever we operate, ensure people are provided safe, suitable, and sanitary work facilities, protection from workplace harassment, including physical, verbal, sexual, or psychological harassment, abuse or threats, and take measures to eliminate components that could harm or threaten human life and health during manufacturing, usage, or disposal in products used in our business.

Employees shall have the right to freely associate, organize, and bargain collectively in accordance with the laws of the countries in which they are employed. In the Centiro spirit, open communication and direct engagement between employees and management are encouraged.

The aims of Centiro's procurement policy are to ensure that the procurement process is secure and systematic, suppliers are aware of Centiro's sustainability goals, and Centiro examines products and services not only from price, but also from information security, sustainability, ethics, and CSR aspects and risks.

3.2 Implementation

Centiro has taken the following measures to prevent human rights violations in its work locations:

- Training and awareness on Centiro's code of ethics is part of the onboarding program for employees, consultants, and service suppliers applicable as identified in the company group risk and vendor assessments.
- A whistleblower (speaking-up) mechanism is implemented, enabling employees to submit complaints and grievances anonymously and with protection from retaliation for immediate handling and board attention.

- Systematic audits and improvement. We work systematically for continuity and continual improvement. We are annually audited by external auditors and certified to the ISO 45001 standard for occupational health and safety management and ISO/IEC 27701 standard for privacy information management. We are EcoVadis rated on gold level.
- We continuously assess sustainability risks and opportunities using a precautionary risk management approach where we focus on preventing and minimizing sustainability-related risks as well as exploring opportunities. The risks and opportunities are assessed and strategically dealt with within the management system.
- We systematically perform activities such as equality and diversity assessment and plan, yearly review of our work environment management, and physical safety inspections. As part of our Great Place to Work survey we also assess several statements connected to sustainability (age, race, disability, physical and psychological healty workplace etc).

3.3 Measurement of Outcomes

Centiro has below measurements and monitoring in the area to be able to continually follow up, monitor, and take appropriate action. The results are at least annually reviewed by the board or top management, as applicable.

- Breaches of our code of ethics. We have a zero tolerance regarding breaches of our code of ethics.
- High set occupational health and safety and physical work environment goals. In our global operations, we strive for the goals of zero employees with longer sickness leave due to work-related stress symptoms, zero employees that terminate their job based on an unhealthy work environment, and zero confirmed discriminations to anyone.
- Company group covering onboarding training in the code of ethics. 100 percent of employees globally are to have signed the code of ethics during recruitment process.
- Company group covering awareness training in harassment and discrimination. 100 percent of employees globally are to have participated in the training on harassment and discrimination.
- Company group covering HR education. 100 percent of employees globally are to be offered the opportunity to participate in the HR training, including but not limited to, information on equality and diversity, discrimination, benefits, labor practices, and our human rights commitment.
- Employee engagement. Centiro is not content with less than being an extraordinarily good workplace a workplace where employees are committed to and proud of their work and the company's goals. We follow the engagement level as indicated by the response rate of the Great Place to Work Trust Index survey in which we aim for at least 95 percent participation.
- Monitoring of indicators to measure outcomes. We have various indicators that we
 follow, for example, staff turnover, employee sickness leave, the staff distribution of
 men and women, the number of reported work accidents and near accidents, and
 the number of full-time employees covered by private medical- and travel
 insurance.
- Partner and supplier evaluation. We regularly audit and evaluate our partners and suppliers against defined principles, policies, and guidelines.
- Monitoring of applicable laws and legislation. We commit to following laws and regulations in all the jurisdictions in which we operate. We have set goals of zero significant fines and non-monetary sanctions for non-compliance with socioeconomic laws and regulations.

4. Labor Principles

- **Principle 3:** Businesses should uphold the freedom of association and the effective recognition of the right to collective bargaining;
- Principle 4: the elimination of all forms of forced and compulsory labor;
- Principle 5: the effective abolition of child labor; and
- **Principle 6:** the elimination of discrimination in respect of employment and occupation.

4.1 Assessment, Policy, and Goals

In Centiro's code of ethics, the equality and diversity policy, and the work environment policy we make clear to all suppliers, employees, and partners globally where we stand in the labor practices issues. Centiro does not tolerate any form of child labor or exploitation. We do not support or use any form of forced, compulsory, or illegal labor. We comply with applicable laws and industry standards on working hours. Our employees have the right to freely associate, organize, and bargain collectively in accordance with the laws of the countries in which they are employee. In the Centiro spirit, open communication and direct engagement between employees and management are encouraged.

Employees are informed of their employment conditions, including rights and obligations, in the employees' native language or a language they understand, for example in a written labor contract.

We comply with, at a minimum, all laws and regulations relating to wages, including minimum wages, overtime wages, and other elements of compensation, and provide legally mandated benefits, including social insurance.

4.2 Implementation

Centiro has taken the following measures to implement labor policies, reduce labor risks, and respond to labor violations in our global operation:

- Training and awareness on Centiro's code of ethics, which includes our labor principles, is part of the onboarding program for employees, consultants, and service suppliers applicable as identified in the company group risk and vendor assessments.
- As part of the company group's onboarding program, all new employees globally are offered the HR training that includes information on equality and diversity, discrimination, benefits, labor practices, among other topics.
- A whistleblower (speaking-up) mechanism is implemented, enabling employees to submit complaints and grievances anonymously and with protection from retaliation for immediate handling and board attention.
- We work systematically with occupational health and safety for continuity and continual improvement. We are annually audited by external auditors and certified to the ISO 45001 standard and EcoVadis rated on gold level.
- We continuously assess sustainability risks and opportunities using a precautionary risk management approach where we focus on preventing and minimizing sustainability-related risks as well as exploring opportunities. The risks and opportunities are assessed and strategically dealt with within the management system.
- The occupational health and safety management is conducted together with employee representatives, the health and safety representatives. These are appointed by the employees and have full insight into company work conditions

and the planning of changes affecting the work environment. The health and safety representatives have the mandate to demand measures to be taken by the employer if needed to achieve a satisfactory working environment.

- We regularly and systematically perform work environment activities such as equality and diversity assessment and plan, yearly review of our work environment management, and physical safety inspections.
- We continually work with the psychosocial work environment to ensure health and safety of all employees, promoting health and preventing stress. This is for example to prevent longer sickness leave due to work-related stress symptoms, which is considered one of our highest occupational health and safety risks.
- All full-time employees are covered by medical- and travel insurances.
- Centiro does not tolerate discrimination and makes this clear in everything from top policy to company culture. All employees are made aware of our zero discriminations policy in a company group covering awareness training in harassment and discrimination.
- We ensure all Centiro employees comparable pay for comparable work. All employees get a yearly salary review and revision. In between, salary adjustments may be performed as part of skills development revisions. We perform an annual salary survey and review statistics, looking at benchmarks in the industry as well as gender equality.
- At Centiro, everyone has the right to development, education, and career. All employees have dialogues (appraisals) with their closest leader at a minimum twice a year. These dialogues cover areas such as development, performance, personal growth, team collaboration, work environment, and health.
- We have a recruitment process that is fair, open, and transparent, where all information on the process is available to all stakeholders. The applicants are made aware of the requirements of each step of the process and get feedback in each step. To prevent discrimination in the recruitment process, we use second opinions, profiles, and cases.
- We have during the pandemic performed regular business continuity meetings and related employee communication to prevent labor related risks.
- Great Place to Work[®], (GPTW) awards Centiro for our dedicated and long-term approach to our workplace culture efforts. Our conscious endeavors, relating to culture, purpose-driven leadership and focus on people, have resulted in high rankings on the Great Place to Work lists since 2010. In 2021 we were awarded number one in Sweden, number seven in Europe and number 39 in India. In addition, we are GPTW-Certified in the US (and will be ranked when we have enough employees to qualify). We have also received the prestigious title Great Place to Work Legend[™] in Sweden for our dedication and long-term approach in the area.

4.3 Measurement of Outcomes

Centiro has below measurements and monitoring in the area to be able to continually follow up, monitor, and take appropriate action. The results are at least annually reviewed by the board or top management, as applicable.

- Breaches of our code of ethics. We have a zero tolerance regarding breaches of our code of ethics.
- High set occupational health and safety and physical work environment goals. In our global operations, we strive for the goals of zero employees with longer sickness leave due to work-related stress symptoms, zero employees who terminate their job based on an unhealthy work environment, and zero confirmed discriminations to anyone.

- Company group covering onboarding training in the code of ethics. 100 percent of employees globally are to have signed the code of ethics during recruitment process.
- Company group covering awareness training in harassment and discrimination. 100 percent of employees globally are to have participated in the training on harassment and discrimination.
- Company group covering HR education. 100 percent of employees globally are to have had the opportunity to attend the HR training within 90 days from start of employment. The training includes, but is not limited to, information on equality and diversity, discrimination, benefits, labor practices, and our human rights commitment.
- Monitoring of indicators to measure outcomes. We have various indicators to follow, for example, staff turnover, the percentage of employee sickness leave, the distribution percentage of men and women, the number of reported work accidents and near accidents, and the number of full-time employees covered by private medical- and travel insurance.
- Equality and diversity plan. We yearly create an equality and diversity plan where we look at the company global current situation, evaluate risks, and plan measures as appropriate. The equality and diversity plan action points are continuously worked with and followed up yearly.
- Monitoring of applicable laws and legislation. We commit to following laws and regulations in all the jurisdictions in which we operate. We have the goals of zero significant fines and non-monetary sanctions for non-compliance with socioeconomic laws and regulations.
- Systematic audits and improvement. We work systematically for continuity and continual improvement. We are annually audited by external auditors and certified to the ISO 45001 standard and EcoVadis rated on gold level.

5. Environmental Principles

- **Principle 7:** Businesses should support a precautionary approach to environmental challenges;
- **Principle 8:** undertake initiatives to promote greater environmental responsibility; and
- **Principle 9:** encourage the development and diffusion of environmentally friendly technologies

5.1 Assessment, Policy, and Goals

We think it is self-evident that our services and operations should have the lowest possible adverse impact on the environment. We even want to take this one step further – we want to, with our services, reduce the negative impacts of the transportation industry on the environment.

In Centiro's code of ethics, we make clear to all suppliers, employees, and partners globally that we make sustainable choices in the workplace and in our business operations, and that we expect everyone to work together to identify areas for improvement and continuously work towards a better environment and healthier planet.

Environmental care has been a corporate core value for Centiro since the company was founded in 1998, and it is an integrated part of daily business throughout the value chain. We design our processes and products in such a way that energy, natural resources, and

raw material are used efficiently. We aim to avoid materials and methods posing environmental and health risks.

Centiro's environmental and energy stance is outlined in our sustainability policy and on a more granular level in our environment and energy policy.

5.2 Implementation

Centiro has taken the following measures to enhance ecological awareness and minimize the adverse environmental impact in our operation:

- Training and awareness on Centiro's code of ethics, covering our environmental stance, is part of the onboarding program for employees, consultants, and service suppliers applicable as identified in the company group risk and vendor assessments.
- Our services create efficient transportation. With our services, positive environmental impact comes from that transportation flows are optimized, consolidated, and controlled so that optimal loads are achieved, optimal routes are chosen, less transports are needed, and goods are correctly delivered and invoiced, to name a selection.
- Green building. Creating and maintaining safe, healthy, and functional workspace and data center buildings is part of Centiro's sustainability idea. For example, we have taken measures to use energy, water, and other resources efficiently, protecting occupant health and improving employee productivity, and reducing waste, pollution, and environmental degradation.
- Green culture. All Centiro employees can with the right mindset help protect the environment by following environmentally sustainable work practices to reduce harm on the environment and reduce wastage of resources. Examples of work practices we employ are reduce waste, recycle, sustainable purchases, awareness, environmental risk and business impact assessments.
- Green IT. We have designed our data centers to function efficiently with minimal impact on the environment in reducing the use of hazardous materials, maximize energy efficiency during the equipment's lifetime, and promote the recyclability or biodegradability of retired equipment. Examples of initiatives are data centers run on 100 percent renewable energy, hot aisle/cold aisle layout design, reuse of the excess heat produced by the equipment in the data center, and the use of server virtualization. Centiro uses a service for reuse and recycle of retired IT products. Most of obsolete devices can be reused and the rest are recycled in a controlled manner.
- Green travel. We aim to travel with as low negative impact on the environment as possible. Centiro policy sets the guidelines for safe and cost-effective travel that considers the environmental aspects.
- Systematic audits and improvement. We work systematically for continuity and continual improvement. We are annually audited by external auditors and certified to the ISO 14001 and ISO 50001 standard and EcoVadis rated on gold level.
- We continuously assess sustainability risks and opportunities using a precautionary risk management approach where we focus on preventing and minimizing sustainability-related risks as well as exploring opportunities. The risks and opportunities are assessed and strategically dealt with within the management system.

5.3 Measurement of Outcomes

Centiro has below measurements and monitoring in the area to be able to continually follow up, monitor, and take appropriate action. The results are at least annually reviewed by the board or management, as applicable.

- Breaches of our code of ethics. We have a zero tolerance regarding breaches of our code of ethics.
- Company group covering onboarding training in the environmental goals. 80 percent of employees globally are to have attended the internal environmental awareness education.
- Partner and supplier evaluation. We regularly audit and evaluate all partners and suppliers against defined principles, policies, and guidelines.
- Monitoring of applicable laws and legislation. We commit to following laws and regulations in all the jurisdictions in which we operate. We have the goals of zero significant fines and non-monetary sanctions for non-compliance with environmental laws and regulations.
- Sustainable procurement. Major suppliers that cover environmental aspects in a structured way should be at least 50 percent of the suppliers that we hire. The percentage of purchasers of internal IT equipment trained on sustainable procurement per year should be at least 80 percent.
- Promoted green commuting. The total number of environmentally friendly (as defined by <u>Worldwide Harmonised Light Vehicle Test Procedure (WLTP)</u>)) company cars and company staff cars should increase compared to the previous year with a minimum of five percent. The environmentally friendly company cars and company staff cars should comprise at least 40 percent of all staff and company cars by 2021.
- Use of green energy. The energy consumption of the Centiro private cloud SaaS delivery in relation to the number of customer shipments should decrease with at least five percent compared to the previous year.
- The energy type used within Centiro global hub facilities including the SaaS delivery data center should be 100 percent green and renewable.
- Green buildings. The office global hub facilities shall maintain the Swedish Green Building Council certifications (GreenBuilding and Svensk Miljöbyggnad Guld).
- Travel habits. The amount of carbon dioxide (CO2) emission during business travel per employee and year must not be more than one metric ton per employee.

6. Anti-Corruption Principles

• **Principle 10:** Businesses should work against corruption in all its forms, including extortion and bribery.

6.1 Assessment, Policy, and Goals

Centiro has a zero tolerance for any type of corruption. We strive towards meeting the highest standards of business ethics and integrity. This is a shared responsibility of all working at Centiro and we expect our suppliers and business partners to apply similar standards for themselves as well as in relation to their partners and suppliers. Centiro's stance on anticorruption is set out in the company's code of ethics and in "Centiro Group Fair Business Practices Policy".

We comply with local laws and international anti-corruption conventions and does not engage in any form of corrupt practices. We treat each other, our clients, our partners, and our other business relations with kindness, integrity, and respect. We comply with the laws and regulations in all jurisdictions where we do business. We do not offer or accept any rewards or benefits that violate any applicable legislation or Centiro code of ethics. We do not make decisions based on personal considerations or relationships. Centiro does not tolerate any illegal contributions, directly or indirectly, to any third parties or public officials. No Centiro employee may offer or provide, directly or indirectly, any undue advantage in exchange for personal gain of any kind.

6.2 Implementation

Centiro has taken the following measures to prevent corruption in its operation:

- Training and awareness on Centiro's code of ethics is part of the onboarding program for employees, consultants, and service suppliers applicable as identified in the company group risk and vendor assessments.
- A whistleblower (speaking-up) mechanism is implemented, enabling employees to submit complaints and grievances anonymously and with protection from retaliation for immediate handling and board attention.
- "Centiro Group Fair Business Practices Policy" has been drafted, in which Centiro commits to performing business according to fair business practices.
- "Centiro Code of Al Ethics" has been drafted, in which we communicate our commitment to create fair and safe intelligent solutions.
- We have a recruitment process that is fair, open, and transparent, where all information on the process is available to all stakeholders. The applicants are made aware of the requirements of each step of the process and get feedback in each step.
- We continuously assess sustainability risks and opportunities using a precautionary risk management approach where we focus on preventing and minimizing sustainability-related risks as well as exploring opportunities. The risks and opportunities are assessed and strategically dealt with within the management system.

6.3 Measurement of Outcomes

Centiro has below measurements and monitoring in the anti-corruption area to be able to continually follow up, monitor, and take appropriate action. The results are at least annually reviewed by the board or management, as applicable.

- Breaches of our code of ethics. We have a zero tolerance regarding breaches of our code of ethics.
- Company group covering onboarding training in the code of ethics. 100 percent of employees globally are to have signed the code of ethics during recruitment process.
- Partner and supplier evaluation. We regularly audit and evaluate all partners and suppliers against defined principles, policies, and guidelines, as well as a region-based corruption risk index.
- Monitoring of applicable laws and legislation. We commit to following laws and regulations in all the jurisdictions in which we operate. We have the goal of zero significant fines and non-monetary sanctions for non-compliance with laws and regulations.
- Systematic audits and improvement. We work systematically for continuity and continual improvement.